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Below are some questions and corresponding answers regarding the NCPL Food and 
Beverage Request for Proposal: 

1. When is the deadline for submission? 
The submission deadline has been extended until April 23rd 2021 at 5pm. 
Submissions received after that time will not be considered. 

2. Do I just drop off a hard copy? 
No. Page 1 of the RFP Guideline Document contains details of the submission 
process. 

3. Where can I find a copy of the Guideline Document? 
The Guideline Document can be downloaded from Nassau Cruise Port’s 
website at: www.nassaucruiseport.com. You may also call the office at (242) 
603-1870 to request a hard copy, which can be collected from our offices. 

4. Is there a form to fill out to go along with my submission? 
Yes. Page 26 of the Guideline Document is where the form begins. 

5. Is there anything else I need to fill out to go along with my submission? 
Yes. Page 19 of the Guideline Document contains a certification and signature 
block which must be included with your submission. 

6. Is there a checklist I can follow to make sure I am submitting all of the 
information required? 
Yes, the final page of the RFP Guideline Document contains a checklist you can 
follow. 

7. What are the dimensions and square footage of the food and beverage spaces 
in the RFP? 
Square footage for the Food and Beverage spaces are in Exhibit 1 (a) and (b) of 
the RFP guideline document. The exhibits appear after page 37.  

8. What will the exterior design look like? 
The design on the outside is island-inspired and contemporary. Successful 
proposers will be responsible for the outfit of the inside of their units. 

9. What will be the hours of operation for the food and beverage spaces? 
Business hours within the port space will be stipulated to at minimum coincide 
with cruise ship activity. The objective is to create a destination in downtown 
Nassau, and to encourage stopover visits from cruise lines. Therefore, activity 
can be expected in the evening hours, though exact hours of operation have yet 
to be decided. Page 13 of the RFP Guideline Document speaks to proposed 
minimum hours of operation. 

10. What is NCPL looking for in these food and beverage spaces? 
Page 37 of the RFP guideline document provides this information. 

11. Where are the food and beverage spaces located compared to the rest of the 
port project? 
The food and beverage spaces are located in the center of the port project. 
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12. Are the food and beverage spaces going to be empty shells or will they be 
equipped? 
The units will be empty shells. Interior outfit will be required by the successful 
proposer. Page 34 of the RFP guideline document has more information on this.  

13. What is the rental fee amount, and initial financial obligation or deposit for the 
food and beverage spaces? 
Rent and CAM amounts will be provided to successful prospective bidders. 

14. When is construction expected to be completed on the project? 
Construction will be completed in 2022. 

15. What is the estimated start date for fitting out once contracts have been 
awarded? 
Once units have been delivered, successful applicants will have 90 days to 
complete their outfit. Page 11 of the RFP Guideline Document outline this 
under “Construction/Fixturing Period” in the Minimum Lease Terms. 

16. Is there a site plan to show where the available spaces are located within the 
overall project? 
There is a site plan rendering attached to the end of this document. 

17. What is the estimated number of cruise ships expected to dock each year over 
the offered lease period of 5 years? 
The number of cruise ships expected to dock for the 5-year period following 
signing of the lease is unknown, as this data is dependent on cruise line 
bookings. We can estimate that passenger throughput will be as much as 3-4 
Million passengers per year based on historical data and increased capacity at 
The Port. 

18. What is the estimated foot fall within port area each year over the offered lease 
period of 5 years? 
See above. 

19. Which cruise lines are expected to use the facility? 
All of the major cruise lines (Carnival, Royal Caribbean, Norwegian, MSC, 
Disney) use the cruise port, along with smaller, boutique cruise lines such as 
Crystal Cruise Lines.  

20. Have any of the F&B opportunities throughout the overall project already been 
awarded? If so to who have they been awarded? 
Nassau Cruise Port Ltd. has not awarded any new food and beverage spaces, 
as this is the food and beverage RFP. There are however tenants from the 
former Festival Place area which fall into the food and beverage category. 

21. Does exhibit 1(a) constitute 2 separate available spaces (N1 & N2)? 
Yes. 

22. Does exhibit 1(b) constitute 3 separate available spaces. (P1, P2 & P3)? 
Yes. 

23. Can any outside space be utilized for any of the offered spaces, if so which 
spaces? 
All spaces will be able to utilize outdoor space attached. 
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24. Do the F&B spaces being offered allow for the sale of alcohol? 
Yes. 

25. Are there any specific restrictions to the units being offered that do not apply 
to the overall retail and F&B area? 
Nassau Cruise Port is not interested in creating or mimicking “Fish Fry” or any 
other existing destination. We wish to encourage culinary innovation with a 
Bahamian influence.  

26. Given the limited space within each unit, will additional storage space be 
available within the port area? 
Storage space will need to be allocated within each unit’s space. There is no 
common storage space area within the port project. Page 13 of the RFP 
guideline document mentions this. 

27. Can a precedent of the proposed food & beverage lease agreement be seen for 
review? 
Successful applicants will be given lease agreements. There is no precedent, or 
example lease, to show to those participating in the RFP process. 

28. Is there a clause in the lease agreement for loss of income/nonpayment of rent 
due to pandemic/natural disasters? 
There will be force majeure clauses within the lease agreement as customary 
for any standard lease. Force majeure has been known to cover natural 
disasters; however, pandemics are not typically covered. 

29. Parking arrangements/facilities for staff/customers? 
Page 35 of the RFP guideline document has information on parking. 

30. What is the height of the windows and doors of the proposed spaces for lease 
or is there is height limit? 
NCPL will work with tenant design team to determine frontage and windows. 
Information on design and development can be found on page 34 of the RFP 
guideline document. 

31. What is the ceiling height of the leased spaces? 
Ceiling heights will be expected to be a minimum of 10 feet. 

32. Will there be tables and/or seating outside the leased spaces for customers of 
the F&B outlets?  
There is limited seating available in the front of the food and beverage spaces. 
The tenant is permitted to place tables and chairs in their area, subject to NCPL 
approval. 

33. Page 4 of the RFP under "Security and Health Requirements" states that "...the 
food and beverage leases will be located in the area adjacent to a secure area."  
Can you please advise what type of "secure area" this refers to? 
This is a reference to the areas that are off limits to persons that are not 
authorized to go past the arrivals building. 
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34. Are there CAD versions of Exhibit 1(a) and Exhibit 1(b) of the RFP which can 
be shared? 
CAD versions of the buildings shown in Exhibit 1(a) and (b) will be provided 
to successful proposers. 

35. What is the anticipated delivery date of the leased units to successful 
Proposers? 
Successful proposers will be provided leases with time to review them prior to 
a signing deadline. All additional deadlines will be communicated to successful 
proposers in the lead up to occupancy and ultimately port project completion. 

36. Page 12 states that "The Tenant will have a period of ten (10) calendar days to 
make NCPL aware of any discrepancy in relation to the reference number of 
passengers invoiced to it." Can you provide some clarity on this 
charge/invoice? 
This is stated incorrectly in the RFP document and should have read the 
“amount invoiced to it” not “passengers”. 

37. Page 12 states that 'Proposers should take into consideration the stipulated 
minimum acceptable percentage and guaranteed rent." Can NCPL please 
clarify/confirm what these two minimums are? 
Successful proposers will be informed of these details. 

38. Will there be any additional Food & Beverage RFPs put out by Nassau Cruise 
Port Ltd.? 
This is unknown, at this time. 

 

The yellow box below shows the five (5) Food and Beverage Spaces included in the 
RFP: 

N 


